Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee

Meeting Venue: Cynulliad
Committee Room 2 - Senedd Cenedlaethol

Cymru

. ] National
Meeting date: Assembly for

Thursday, 1 May 2014 Wales

Meeting time: ‘i// y’
09.00

For further information please contact:
Sarah Beasley

Committee Clerk

029 2089 8032
CELG.committee@wales.gov.uk

Agenda

The Committee agreed on 2 April 2014, a motion under Standing Order 17.42 (vi)
and (ix) to resolve to exclude the public from the meeting

1 Inquiry into Public Libraries in Wales - Consideration of Key Issues
(09.00-09.30)

2 Housing (Wales) Bill: Paper for consideration on Stage 2 (09:30-09:45)
(Pages 1 - 5)

3 Consideration of the letter from the Chair of the Public Accounts
Committee: Meeting the financial challenges facing Local Government in
Wales (09:45:09:55) (Page 6)

Break (09.55-10.00)

4 Professional Development Programme - Financial Scrutiny (10.00-



12.00) (Pages 7 - 19)

5 Papers to note (Pages 20 - 56)



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a Ite m 2

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 3

Agenda Item 3

Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus Cynulliad
Public Accounts Committee Eiﬂfﬂaetho'
National
Assembly for
Wales
Christine Chapman AM %
Chair

Communities, Equalities and
Local Government Committee

08 April 2014

Dear Christine,

Meeting the financial challenges facing Local Government in Wales

Thank you for your letter dated 25 March 2014 outlining the work the
Communities, Equalities and Local Government (CELG) Committee intends to
undertake in relation to the issues raised in the recent Wales Audit Office
report, ‘Meeting the financial challenges facing Local Government in Wales’.

As you are aware, the Committee discussed this issue on the 3 April 2014. We
agreed to write to you again to express the pressing need for scrutiny around
this issue and to encourage the CELG Committee to provide an opportunity for
further work on the matter in its forward work programme.

The Public Accounts Committee has also recently written to the WLGA
requesting a response to the report including details of how the WLGA intends
to take forward the wider recommendations it has made. We have agreed to
return to this issue on receipt of the WLGA’s response and your response to
this letter, in order to determine how we might wish to take forward any work
on this subject.

Yours sincerely,

Darren Millar AM
Chair

Bae Caerdydd
Cardiff Bay
CF99 1NA

Pack Page 6 Ffon / Tel: 029 2089 8041

E-bost / Email: PublicAccounts.Committee@Wales.gov.uk
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg a’r Saesneg/We welcome correspondence in both English and Welsh




By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42 Ag en d a Ite m 4

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 7



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 10



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 11



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 15



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 17



Agenda ltem 5

1 May 2014 - Papers to Note

Paper | Issue and Date of | From Action Point
No: meeting
5 Housing (Wales) Minister for Additional information on the
Bill Housing and housing needs of former
Regeneration prisioners
6 The future Ofcom Ofcom agreed to provide a copy
outlook for the of their consumer guide on digital
media in Wales: TV reception in north-east Wales.
follow-up session
27 March 2014
7 The future ITV Wales ITV Wales agreed to provide a
outlook for the note on ITV reception in North
media in Wales: Wales.
follow-up session
27 March 2014
8 Inquiry into Public | Rhondda Cynon The Chair of the Committee wrote
Libraries Taff County to the 22 Local Authorities on 26
Borough Council March 2014 to request additional
Information on libraries.
9 Merthyr Tydfil
County Borough
Council
10 Blaenau Gwent
County Borough
Council
11 Conwy County
Borough Council
12 Bridgend County
Borough Council
13 Holiday Caravan Darren Millar, Table of derivations
Sites (Wales) Bill Member in Charge
of the Bill

Pack Page 20




Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 5

Carl Sargeant AC / AM '\/ (fﬁ/

Y Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio g
Minister for Housing and Regeneration J}

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

Ein cyf/Our ref: LF/CS/00341/14

Christine Chapman AM

Chair

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
National Assembly for Wales

Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

1 April 2014

Dear Chris,
Housing (Wales) Bill: Stage 1 Committee Report - CELG Committee

Your Committee’s report highlights members’ concerns about meeting the housing needs of
former prisoners as a result of the changes in the Bill to the current priority need categories.
In light of this, | thought it might be helpful if | provided an update on the action that is in
hand to improve current arrangements.

You may recall | wrote to you on 19 February 2014, enclosing a note to the Committee on
the Prisoner Accommodation and Resettlement Working Group. | established the group
with the intention that all current and former prisoners will be able to access the improved
homelessness services that will result from Part 2 of the Bill. The note described the Group,
its membership, and issues and priorities that have been identified. | also outlined its
planned work. My ultimate goal is to have in place a national standard for the housing
support provided to prisoners and this is represented in the attached work programme.

Please find attached information on the action that has been taken and additional action,
the arrangements for which are in hand. Given the commitment that has been shown by the
wide range of organisations that are involved in the group, | am confident that arrangements
to support prisoners with their accommodation needs prior to release, and where necessary
housing issues upon remand, will be significantly improved. The latter is particularly
important to help avoid a loss of home for those on remand or in prison for relatively short
periods.

Bae Caerdydd « Cardiff Bay English Enquiry Line 0845 010 3300
Caerdydd « Cardiff Liinell Ymholiadau Cymraeg 0845 010 4400
CF99 1NA Correspondence.Carl.Sargeant@wales.gsi.gov. uk

Wedi'i argraffu ar bapur wedi’i ailgylchu pigek) P age 21 Printed on 100% recycled paper



| am committed to better support for all prisoners, including those who are vuinerable. As |
have already indicated, | am also reinforcing our commitment to meet the needs of
vulnerable people by amending the Bill to refer to physical and mental health and disability,
as well as including a definition of vulnerability.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you or any members of your Committee have any
further queries on the Group and its work.

Yours sincerely,
4 / /X
U o e L
\/ é”é/i‘”( ci/i»/”ﬁ—{gf%/?i/ h

Carl Sargeant AC/ AM
Y Gweinidog Tai ac Adfywio
Minister for Housing and Regeneration

Pack Page 22



| abed

102 1990120 podeal wusjul —uosiud 24ed :1osfoid | 61
s1o9foud Buisixs jo |esieidde

102 1900100 [EDI}IO PUB MBIASI WO SUOIEPUSWILLIODa) PUB SUoISnjouo?) :sjosfoid Bunsixa jo mainay | g9l

710z 1aqualdeg pamainal pue a|gejieae asuepinb yeiq :eoueping Alojnjeis | /1
uoljen|eAs asuswwod — awwesboid s|jdoad buipoddng ayj Jspun

10z aunp slouosud Jawuoj 0} pasayo poddns pajejal Buisnoy mainay :sjoafoid Bunsixa jo mainay | gL

¥10Z aunp pasuawiwod 109foud - 1oaloid Aemuyjed Jouosiud sjewsa ;Joaloid | G
PaoUBWIWOD SMaINa) — swieal)s Bulpuny 10afoid Buiysixa

10z Aey ybnoly; paltaniep poddns jo jesiesdde jeonio pue mainay :s1oafoid Buisixa jo mainay | vl
sjuang Juswdojana [euoibay

102 Aepy wou yodai Buipnjour ‘Lodai jeuly — uoisinold pue sadiales Buisixa jo Buiddepy 10sfoid | €1

710z Aely paouswiwod }03loud —uoslid oied :Joaloid | zZ1

10z Aepy/udy (¢) syusng yuawdojena( [euoibay — uoisinoid pue sadialas buysixe jo buiddepy ;10sloid Ll

¥10Z judy paysljqeise dnoib-gns bunjeli :asueping Aioinjeis jo juswdoaag | 0l

10z judy (e19e1 mojaq ajou as8s) podal [eniul — uoisinold pue sadinas Buisixs jo buiddey ;10sfoid 6

102 yolep (4om s,dnoub ayj 0} Juensjal) paonpoujul Abajens buipuay-ay bulonpay 8
‘'Spasu yj|eay [ejusw e y)im siauosud ajgeiaujna uo snooy tejnaijied e yum

102 yalep ‘uoslid oJed ui siauosud |je Joj shkemuyjed jo uoijeulpio-09 1o} pawio} dnoib-gng :joefoid L

¥10Z yolepy |esodoid Aemyied iauosud ajews; e jo Juswdojanap pue buidoog 10afoid 9
pasuswwod Jo3foid — papasu Juswdojanap Jayunj pue sdeb

102 yolepy ‘ooe|d uj swa)sAs poddns Apyuspl 0} uoisinoid pue sadiales Bulsixa jo buiddey ;josloig G
sjoeljuoo Auedwon uoiejljiqeyay

10z Aenigo Ajunwiwio) 1oy sialapus) wojul 0} sajepA Ul sjuswdojanap uo pasedsid Buyalig [eniu) 4

102 yoleN/Aeniga payuapl spaau josloid jeniu] €

710z Aenigaq/Aienuer swwelboud yiom dojansap pue sanssi 2doas 0] (¢) sbuneaw |eniu| Z

y10Z Atenuer paystjqelss dnolc) buijiop) JUSWBIasay pue UOoI}ePOLILLIOIDY JaUOoSlid L
ouljpuil ] uonoy

sjuawale A9y :GL/rL0z owwesboid YoM

dno.ug BuIOAA JUSWIB|IIOSAY puUR UOIRPOWWOIIY JauoSLid

(FL)OMYVd

Pack Page 23



PARWG(14)

20 | Review of existing projects: Review housing related support offered to former prisoners November 2014
under the Supporting People programme — final report

21 | Project: Female prisoner pathway pilot — interim report December 2014
22 | Publish national standard for providing housing support to prisoners December 2014
23 | Training programme designed in light of findings from pilot projects and national standard | December 2014
24 | Project: Parc Prison— final report March 2015

25 | Project: Female prisoner pathway- final report March 2015
Note:

Initial feedback from the mapping pilot project identified opportunities for additional studies and/or pilot projects. These are being
considered and will inform future expansion of the Group’s work programme.

Prevention work between Swansea Housing options team and Swansea Prison
Anglesey Housing support pilot project

Regional hub approach

Cross border hub approach

Reciprocal arrangements

Pilot “A Better Chance” protocol, developed between criminal justice partners in 2006, across North Wales

Addressing issues for leaving temporary accommodation

Page 2

Pack Page 24



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 6

Digital TV reception

in north-east Wales

Some viewers in parts of north east Wales have reported poor digital terrestrial (Freeview) TV reception
since digital switchover took place. In particular, some viewers have reported that they are experiencing
problems accessing Welsh national TV channels, including S4C.

Ofcom and the BBC have looked into these reports and have found that the local TV transmitter masts
are operating correctly, and are providing good signals over their intended transmission areas. However
in some cases, we found problems with viewers’ aerials (for example, some households’ aerials were not
pointing to the most suitable Welsh transmitter). In some other cases, viewers are outside the predicted
coverage area of a Welsh Freeview transmitter. Most of the viewers in this situation would have had poor
(or no) reception of Welsh analogue channels before digital switchover.

This factsheet provides a step-by-step guide to help local viewers improve their TV reception. It can’t cover
everything, and some of the information is quite technical, but don’t worry - a local aerial installer or
retailer can give you detailed advice on your own situation if you need it.

Step 1: Find out which transmitter gives the best service at your address

If you have access to the internet, the Digital UK postcode checker at www.digitaluk.co.uk/coveragechecker
will provide a full prediction of reception quality at your address. If you do not have access to the internet,
Digital UK can also provide information on TV signal coverage over the phone on 08456 50 50 50.

To use the online postcode checker, type your postcode and house number or name into the boxes on the
main screen, and tick the ‘detailed view’ box.

You will then see a screen similar to the one overleaf (though the results for your own address will be
different). Every TV transmitter broadcasts either three or six ‘groups’ of Freeview channels, and for each
transmitter which can potentially be received in your area, the predicted reception quality of the different
channel groups is indicated by Green, Amber or Red colour coded ‘bars’:

-- Good reception of this channel group should be possible so long as your
aerial and cabling are in good condition and of an appropriate type, and

your aerial is pointing towards the transmitter in question. Attention may
still need to be paid to the precise positioning of the aerial to obtain best
reception results on all channels.

-- Reception quality on this channel group is predicted to be ‘variable’.
Reception may be disrupted or lost occasionally or relatively frequently. It

may be possible to improve the reliability of reception by using a very good
quality, highly efficient, aerial installation, but it may not be possible to
achieve fully reliable reception.

-- Reception on this channel group is likely to be poor or very poor, and it is
unlikely to be possible to significantly improve reception reliability.

(No colour code) This channel group cannot be received (or is not transmitted).

OfFcom

Pack Page 25 EETT



www.digitaluk.co.uk/coveragechecker

Here is an example of the postcode checker results page:

Transmitters carrying Welsh national
w Digital transmitters @ serv_ices are listed as ‘Wales’ in the 0
Region column

“ Region Paremt Transmitler Grid Referance Distance (Km) f‘.mﬁﬁ:li:lﬂ:tpl

Most Likely

wiraxham Rho Wales ol y P SJ 30093 53740 B 3B AY AV
Transmittar irexham Bhos Vale Moely Par: ! T4
Alternathe e e " S
Transminer.  MoelyPart Wales i 5112334 TO135 32 33 COHWH BH
Allernative o .p o Wales Mol v Parc SJ 26776 40923 1 332 ciov Cipy
Transmitier
RUEatve g i) Granada P S0 65053 14463 73 24 CIDH CiDH
Transmitter
= Coverage prediction € o
W (5] M W Good @ Vanable ® Fou
. receplion racaplion raceplion
Channel Served Marginal !
Wrexham Rhos

VeoNwenpgeoM
o 18Mar13 28 97 898 32 85 899 15 95 B4 .
s m— —— Good reception on all three
Final situation Det13 28 97 99 32 96 99 25 96 99 channel groups
Moel y Parc

verNUernmpeNgeMNweNge ™

ar13 . 2 - 33 83 2+ 29 79 48 20 7; :

i 1eMar1a 45 39 4 Rl - il - Jeaiiad No reception on three

Receplion change Apri3 45 39+ 42 E1- 34 B1 53+ 31 81 48 20 75 channel groups, and
e, ‘variable’ reception on three

Final siuation 0e113 45 30+ 42 51- 34 B1 52+« 31 B1 48 20 75

o i ] ’ g E— l_II_J' Channel groups

Cefn Mawr

WO MPE MY M
Mo 1amMaril 65F 36 56 53 34 54 60
EOr== ===

Final siuation Oct13 6T 36 56 53 34 54 |80
1 I ]

Poor or no reception

Winter Hill

MRS RUIR RS U NS RUBR MRS RN RS RUE N S

Receplion change Mar13 B2- 99 094 80 09 :99 54- 08 00 |58 05 99 B1- 90 .09 55 90 09 . X
1= T == T === u=m Good reception on all six
Retung event @ 10Apr13 (B0 99 99 50 69 99 54- 98 99 58 96 99 49 93 99 65 99 94 channel groups (English

Reception change Oct13 50 ‘H'__‘J%' 50 099:.99 &4- 08 99 5B 956 90 |48 ‘EI‘.‘-_ PO 55 00 54 reg]onal programmes)

In this example, the Wrexham Rhos transmitter would provide the best reception for Welsh national
programmes. English regional services would also be available from the Winter Hill transmitter.

However, Wrexham Rhos transmits fewer channels than larger transmitters such as Winter Hill and Moel y
Parc — although these do include BBC One Wales, BBC Two Wales, ITV Wales, S4C, Channel 4, Channel 5, as
well as around 10 other standard definition channels.

Pack Page 26



Step 2: Find out which transmitter your aerial is pointing towards

The postcode checker results page provides a compass Bearing from your house to each transmitter.

In the example on the previous page, the Wrexham Rhos transmitter is at a bearing of 316 degrees, or
approximately north-west. The Aerial Group After column also tells you the suggested aerial ‘group’ to use,
and shows whether your aerial should be fitted with its rods pointing horizontally (H) or vertically (V).

Also in this example, the Moel y Parc transmitter lies in a very similar direction (313 degrees) to Wrexham
Rhos. Another way to help find out which transmitter your aerial is pointing towards is to look at which
way the ‘prongs’ on your aerial are pointing. They will either be pointing horizontally or vertically as in the
pictures below.

Horizontal (H) Rods: If you aerial has horizontal rods
then it will be pointing towards one of the larger

‘main’ transmitters. In areas of north east Wales where
viewers have reported reception problems, aerials with
horizontal rods are most likely to be pointing towards
the Moel y Parc, Winter Hill, or The Wrekin transmitters.

Vertical (V) rods: If your aerial has vertical rods then it
will be pointing towards a smaller ‘relay’ transmitter. In
areas of north east Wales where viewers have reported
reception problems, an aerial with vertical rods is likely
to be pointing towards either the Wrexham Rhos or
Cefn Mawr relays.

If you wish to realign the aerial to a different transmitter, for example, Winter Hill to Wrexham Rhos, you
may need to change your aerial from horizontal to vertical. You will also need to ensure that the aerial

is the correct ‘group’ (indicating the range of TV frequencies that the aerial is designed to pick up) —a
wideband aerial can pick up all frequencies.

Note that transmitters located in England — those listed as ‘Granada’ or ‘Central’ in the Region column — do
not transmit Welsh national services.

My aerial is not pointing towards the best transmitter for my address

You will need to consider getting your aerial adjusted or replaced. The organisations at the end of this
factsheet can provide the names of their local aerial installer members. My aerial is pointing towards the
correct transmitter, but reception is still poor.

My aerial is pointing towards a transmitter which shows good (green) coverage for Welsh
channels on the postcode checker, but my reception is still poor

Many reception problems of this kind are to do with the type and quality of viewers’ aerial installations.
The performance of external aerials gets worse over time because of metalwork corrosion. Therefore aerial
replacement is normally recommended every 10 to 12 years. Aerials which previously provided a ‘snowy’
(weak) analogue TV pictures may not work reliably with digital signals, and may need to be replaced.

Reception problems can also be sometimes be caused by nearby trees or tall buildings, especially if they
are between the transmitter and your aerial. In these cases it may be possible to move the aerial to an
alternative position (e.g. on the opposite side of tRaBKUBA@@atd there is less of an obstruction.



My aerial is in the loft or on top of my TV

Internal aerials do not provide as strong a signal as a rooftop aerial, and therefore broadcasters do not
recommend their use. You should consider using a rooftop aerial.

The postcode checker shows that | can only receive good signals from an English transmitter

Nearly all viewers in Wales can pick up Welsh national channels on Freeview. However the coverage
pattern of the UK’s current Freeview transmitter masts very closely matches the coverage pattern of the
old analogue transmitters: In fact, Freeview uses all of the former analogue TV masts. A small number of
locations have always experienced difficulty picking up signals from a Welsh TV mast, and this remains
the case following digital switchover. Viewers in areas of poor Welsh digital signal coverage (who are also
very likely to have had poor, or no, reception of Welsh analogue channels) will therefore need to consider
alternative reception options.

These alternatives include satellite reception. As well as subscription channels from Sky, digital satellite
carries a wide range of non-subscription channels which can be received with Freesat equipment (see
glossary) for a one-off equipment and installation charge, but with no ongoing monthly charges.

Full information on likely digital signal quality at individual households was available from Digital UK for
some time before digital switchover took place — allowing viewers who would not be able to receive good
Welsh signals on Freeview to select an alternative reception option.

My aerial is correctly pointing towards a Welsh transmitter which the postcode checker says
will give me good signals, but | am seeing English regional channels in the channel list on my
Freeview equipment.

It may be that there is some other problem with the aerial system. Alternatively, a fairly common (and
easily resolved) problem is that your Freeview equipment may have tuned itself in to signals from an
alternative English transmitter: even when an aerial is correctly installed and pointed, it can sometimes pick
up signals from a transmitter outside the local area. This problem can be resolved by ‘manually re-tuning’
the Freeview equipment so that it only picks up channels from the desired local transmitter. Digital UK can
provide more advice on manual retuning on 08456 50 50 50 or at www.digitaluk.co.uk/manualretuning.

| live in a flat or apartment with a shared aerial system
You should contact your landlord or property manager if aerial adjustment or replacement is required.
| have two aerials on my house

Some viewers use two aerials to supply signals to different TV sets in the house. For example, one aerial
may supply a living room TV, while a separate aerial supplies a bedroom TV. These types of system should
not normally cause special problems.

However, some viewers use more sophisticated dual-aerial installations, which may cause difficulties. In
these systems, each aerial points towards a different transmitter, and the signals from each aerial are
combined together and are connected to one or more TV sets. Combining two sets of signals does have the
potential to cause problems as the signals may conflict with each other, and specialised signal combining
equipment (‘filters’ or ‘diplexers’) are required. Changes to transmitter frequencies have occurred as part
of the digital switchover process, and these mean that some aerial combining systems may need to be
professionally adjusted. The organisations at the end of this factsheet can provide the names of their local
aerial installer members.

Pack Page 28


www.digitaluk.co.uk/manualretuning

| receive signals from a relay like Wrexham Rhos or Cefn Mawr, and | can’t get all the Freeview
channels

Relay transmitters such as Wrexham Rhos and Cefn Mawr do carry fewer channels than larger transmitters
such as Moel y Parc or Winter Hill. But they do carry all the TV services paid for by the BBC Licence Fee, as
well as the other ‘public service’ channels (ITV Wales, S4C, Channel 4 and Channel 5)

Relay transmitters carry about 16 standard TV channels, compared with the larger transmitters which

carry more than 40 channels. The additional channels at the larger transmitters are provided on a purely
commercial basis, and are not subject to the same minimum signal availability requirements as the public
service channels. The operators of these channels have decided that it is not commercially viable to extend
their services to additional relay transmitters.

Viewers receiving TV signals from a relay who want to receive a wider range of channels should consider
alternative reception options such as digital satellite As well as subscription channels from Sky, digital
satellite carries a wide range of non-subscription channels which can be received with Freesat equipment
(see glossary) for a one-off equipment and installation charge, but with no ongoing monthly charges.

| am still getting interference even after going through all the above

Some people will experience some interference to the Freeview signal from time to time. Atmospheric
conditions, specifically, during certain high pressure conditions, can cause TV signals to travel much
further than they normally do, and interference from very distant transmitters (both within the UK and
in neighbouring countries) can occur. The transmitter networks are carefully planned within the UK and
with our neighbours to minimise the likelihood of unusual atmospheric conditions causing disruption to
reception, but it is unfortunately not possible to eliminate the effect altogether. If your aerial is correctly
installed and aligned, however, this interference should not last for long periods.

Interference can also sometimes be caused by problems such as malfunctioning or poorly installed
domestic electrical equipment. The national Radio and TV Investigation Service (operated by the BBC) can
assess suspected cases of localised interference and provide advice to viewers. Contact details are provided
in the glossary.

Glossary

Aerial Installer Bodies Confederation of Aerial Industries Limited (CAl)
Communications House

41a Market Street

Watford

Hertfordshire WD18 OPN.

Tel: 01923 803030

web: www.cai.org.uk

Registered Digital Institute (RDI)
26 E-space South

St Thomas Place

Ely

Cambridgeshire CB7 4EX

Tel: 0870 129 8015

web: www.rdi-online.co.uk

Pack Page 29


www.cai.org.uk
http://www.rdi-online.co.uk

Satellite Services

Freesat from the BBC and ITV provides a range of
non-subscription channels for a one-off payment for
reception equipment and installation:
www.freesat.co.uk

Sky also provides a non-subscription ‘Freesat from
Sky’ service, as well as full subscription (‘pay-TV’)’
packages:

www.sky.com/shop/freesat/home (Freesat from
Sky non-subscription services).

www.sky.com (subscription services)

Localised Interference Assessment

Radio & Television Investigation Service
PO Box 1922

Darlington DL3 OUR

Tel: 03709 016 789

web: www.radioandtvhelp.co.uk

Public Service (PSB) channels

The TV channels carried at ‘PSB’ relays such as
Wrexham Rhos and Cefn Mawr are:

BBC One Wales, BBC Two Wales, ITV Wales, S4C,
Channel 4, Channel 5, BBC Three, BBC Four, BBC
News, BBC Parliament, CBBC, Cbeebies, ITV+1, ITV2,
Channel 4+1, and More Four.

Four additional high definition channels are
available for viewers with Freeview HD equipment:

Commercial (COM) channels

The Commercial channels (carried at larger
transmitters such as

Moel y Parc and Winter Hill) include, amongst
others;

ITV3, ITV4, 5%, 5 USA, Quest, Pick TV, Sky News, Film
4, Yesterday.

Full channel lists are available at http://www.
digitaluk.co.uk/industry/channel providers/post
switchover

Produced by

Ofcom

Riverside House

2a Southwark Bridge Road
London

SE1 9HA

website www.ofcom.org.uk

email: broadcast.technical@ofcom.org.uk

Document Version 1.0, April 2013

Pack Page 30



www.freesat.co.uk
www.sky.com/shop/freesat/home
www.sky.com
www.radioandtvhelp.co.uk
http://www.digitaluk.co.uk/industry/channel_providers/post_switchover
http://www.digitaluk.co.uk/industry/channel_providers/post_switchover
http://www.digitaluk.co.uk/industry/channel_providers/post_switchover
www.ofcom.org.uk
mailto:broadcast.technical@ofcom.org.uk

OFfFcom

Wenvoe transmitter group
Carmel transmitter group
Preseli transmitter group
Blaenplwyf transmitter group

I
Kilvey Hill transmitter group

i
4
+ Llanddona transmitter group

+ Moel-y-Parc transmitter group
+ Long Mountain transmitter group

The digital switchover lead transmitter in
each group is underlined. Transmitters in
capitals carry 6 multiplexes.

For information on switchover

dates, please visit:
www.digitaluk.co.ukiwhen_do_i_switch
www.digitaluk.co.uk/postcodechecker

Map Images © Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
Licensee: Ofcom, 2009. Licence No:100018047

v2.3, 20 July 2009

Map subject to change as swifchover plfan develops

Wales: Digital Switchover
transmitter groups

Amiwch

Ce m18 .#mh

Mallwyd )

rris

A

+Afon
- I brynmai! anfair ¢ag

Bi rkenhf&ad- - ‘;\

= y ! \\. \
Southport 4~ y 3
\ \ - ,f; A .
Skelmers-
= ¥ ":‘}'1 "|5L<.’.”< / .:JE‘-It"_" .‘_\..
Maghull )%/ e =
o // RSN
: Bootle \[" - /, Helers 2
Liverpool

Wallasey | |

e Bariiach Liandudno 1N
ac et o o ienllech . CR’WPW“W ahant itmela
m-‘ j'(:.l{ FS!_Y ’ 1mchdr3dy L | Runcorn
sland Liangetni pahai (I—.)l,l."ﬂa‘ir'm nd:!ulas =
: \\ ' Bridge c AbEwjie!Batwsdm-Rhos Gaivwell %, N LT R
Rhosneigr - x—_/_’v “bangor MOEL - el
ethesda N ""’ fair 7_Denbigh HREsn
Corgationc o ARRSSEE T, oy Chéster
e t'g::"m‘“ \-l,.:funwf-_.t M, 1d 5 /
.aerna 1l M Ko
3 v etws-y-Coed f“*’ﬂ:«}@n.og sl ianarmok-yn-idi
ed Derw i i '
wil Glas exhamiRhos
el ent [
,‘g’gﬁ‘{f}g‘;" M Pentrefoelas o w il Tl Nantw
Arfon edd rt Li : en-y-Bang L vvrexnar
+ ‘B g:ﬁ “’(‘CLE’d +Cm_qj_g¥dmdlon _ f/ y 4
e Ffestinio g "’ LOTwen Glyndyfrdwy | ’/_.
Nefyn Porlhmadng ng.,w Corwer + II!L“":#"'%;:‘_“QM Y
' i 71k tl’uﬁnﬂ +B ala  Glyndeleingiiien = ( Wh
-'-Mom Mtfyrl~ Criccieth - A, Liandderfel +Pontra_uog p ’ /
Pwllhel T_""” W'M dISNOWDO ‘P‘-ia’l%‘%fé"‘y“ \‘\ “Ehesmere /
R \"a 4 /
I X h Harlech swéstry - Wem §
Imrhaeadr-ym-hlbeqnant {’
Si .a\-vlr-_lr\- .
\ \_ \f /
M | sfeDalgeltac!/a 0 dH",f'l”*.IMMHn
Barmodkiwyh onn ?‘

'|'Uansfiﬂ*a1'l'ﬂm-y-9ﬂf T 3 /\;_‘

hrewgbury Te
*Long Mountain

Machynllethf
. ko b y A ~ aereinion [ ) Much
i afeMachynietn ()| OO @ | [ Wenlock
it ( nys Pennal N >
~ iy
Broneirioh’ —. wlKerry { Chulr h B
wpolybont #...L,mj};gw{own Y\ ) Stretton
Bow Stree enrhyn -Coch #Im”‘o“ é:.ag?'l(i&' (
Aberystwythafe erystwym Llanic ‘Pf S Clun / e
Slun A 7\
Ystumtu@ #wgq"“g’ g /f’ =, Ludiow
BLAENPLWYF T > L %
nrhvstud Lledrod Knighton /.
Llanrhystud : nayader Pk J
RIS e :
Aberaeron & "?ﬂ"d/?? ' (
New Quay +LI ?'::-‘i.'ﬁ' C Tl‘gﬁ-’t?:rl ‘J\FE\:HS ‘!
Mg Tregaron I Qﬁuam" ’,1' Kington , \ Leomii
)4 +Trefilan [ j
Liangrannag., { 11
+ SWod Inr afaLiangybi ,/*‘g{‘lnﬂu’ t
Lo =1 (=1 > 4 ~ L Wells [
. - *8\‘& ewydd — (
Strumble o st Dogmaels /*- anwrtyd Wells N
Head sfeNewport Bay L orid -l-mynydﬁ!mam* }' }jl‘j weErwood +th,m D
andysul Vells X r e
Goodwick mmFishguard Nw«"wym* 3 F i oh ‘”»e Hereford 2
PEMBROKESHIRE 7! Emiyn whroncader  fpliansawel /| |ondovery wen
COAST { F ishguard }Taloy St ' 2 algarth ’r’
5 gy + lmﬁni' u'ym’/(+ RESE vnwyl HTICMI+ Lianasdsa ( * BB B 1* =
id's Head T % Cynwyl:ﬂh!ﬂ - ShiA 8s Wh‘!*s - *
wfustBavids < _ sfsHaverfordwest 5 o

Haverfordwest | /<

Narberth
CARMELs |
rj_'ﬁ"m_(m“e" L Ammanford &y
Ferryside — !
Ha\’en_.:/ Pembroke \ Kl_s:!‘ﬁ,‘:"_‘ll'v’ ’” 7
ot Pendine “ Uaneli [/

”Pemb,roke D(‘nk

Dock Burry | e el
s ol

Pembroke

St Govan's
Head

Lundy

1 I“.-' '/..’
he l]+lrm'|m'5«}iJirm(y'ai Ly

Carmart

: - B2t an

i

* ._’l1_.\| 1A \!H

FeTs sL'- qye “”‘JJ‘

[} I =1 Al s Pl ..
oSN *

L
VEY HILL HILL 7
. obatow. i
Swan s "%“ : 5 3
L
Upper Killay i TR
Worms Head | T
PG whi s LEynon Nowport ¥ ~—~“\
Avonmoutn |
- o R
ARDIFE L ode
; Giavadons . Reistoli b
a3 Pararih e
; 4
Cardi\inlas i W o @
AIpRort WWastnnearniya i/ ars f"}". I
' Rz
Burnham- | & < Cheddar
IIfracombe I ynion Porlock on-oea ~1 55
fracombe _ Minehead :
) ; Wells *-
E ,k( {L‘?C' Os‘{ 2

Braunton

Pack Page 31

Williton

Glastonbury.
Bridmamtnr --'I |



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 7

CYMRU WALES

Reception of Welsh TV services in North Wales

Note to the National Assembly for Wales’s Communities, Equality and Local
Government Committee

Further to questions raised at last week’s committee session regarding reception of the ITV
Cymru Wales service in North Wales, we have now consulted with technology colleagues.

They advise that - as illustrated by the attached Ofcom map of the Digital Terrestrial
Television (DTT or “Freeview”) transmitters in Wales - there is no technical reason why the
vast majority of households in Wales should be without Welsh television services.

However, Ofcom has advised there are a number of factors that may determine the
consumption of English TV services at the expense of Welsh TV services in some
households. These are:

e Consumer choice - where some viewers (for example, incomers from the North-West
of England) may prefer to watch services with which they are familiar, or where
hoteliers may be catering for holidaymakers’ preferences;

¢ Inheritance viewing - where people moving into homes where Freeview aerials are
already tuned to Granada/BBC North West region transmitters do not realise that
their televisions or set top boxes can be readjusted to receive Welsh services;

e Limitations to channel availability from relay transmitters in certain areas of North-
East Wales (e.g. Wrexham Rhos") and the availability of a larger number of channels
from the Granada region transmitters.

With reference to Llandudno, the area receives Welsh TV services from one of the many
transmitters in the vicinity. However, we are advised that the Storeton transmitter on the
Wirrall also radiates to this part of Wales. If tuned to Storeton, households in Llandudno will
receive English, not Welsh, regional programmes. Viewers will be watching, for example,
ITV’'s Granada news service instead of ITV’'s news service for Wales.

Tuning advice

Freeview customers using the newer TV and set-top boxes are given a choice of TV regions
with the option of installing, in the case of ITV, their preferred region at Channel 3. Most TVs
and boxes then put other regions in the 800s on the electronic programme guide (EPG), while
some appliances only store the one requested.

1 Relay transmitters such as Wrexham Rhos and Cefn Mawr carry fewer channels than larger
transmitters such as Moel y Parc or Winter Hill (Bolton). But they do carry all the services paid for by the
BBC licence fee as well as the other public service channels - ITV Wales, S4C, Channel 4 and Channel
5. Viewers receiving TV signals from a relay who want to receive a wider range of channels whilst
retaining the Welsh channels should consider alternative reception options such as digital satellite.

Pack Page 32



Older boxes will either put the first ITV region found at channel 3 or the one with the strongest
signal. Other regions are placed in the 800s on the EPG. It is possible to change the
allocation but to do this requires the TV or box to be manually tuned.

This is not too difficult to do but requires the manual and knowledge of the frequencies in the
area. The Digital UK helpline on 08456 50 50 50 may be able to help as this was set up to
assist viewers during Digital Switchover and advisers have a good knowledge of sets and
boxes and retuning methods. Affected viewers should check to see if they have other regions
stored in the 800 numbers.

Satellite and cable services are set up to match the terrestrial coverage. Sky and cable
viewers will receive the region associated with the address registered to their viewing card, so
if this is not correct, they will not get the correct region. Freesat boxes allow the viewer to
enter the postcode directly into the box or set and so will receive the region associated to the
postcode supplied.

We understand that Ofcom is planning to undertake more research on this issue. In the
meantime, we hope the above explanation will be of help.

Huw Rossiter

Public Affairs Manager
ITV Cymru Wales
huw.rossiter@itv.com

Pack Page 33


mailto:huw.rossiter@itv.com

el STRONG HERITAGE | STRONG FUTLIRE
/4 RHONDDA CYNON TAF
/ TRETTADAETH CADARM | DYFOLMOL 510K

s The: Pavilions, Cambrian Park

Clydach Vale, Tonvpandy, CF40 2XX

¥ Pafilivnau, Parc v Cambrian

Cwern Clydach, Tonypandy, CR40 23X

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee [el/Ffan: 01447 424026, Fasx/Ffacs: (11443 474077
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 8 ;

Ms C. Chapman AM,

Communities, Quality and Local Government Committee,
National Assembly for Wales,

Cardiff Bay,

CARDIFF.

CF99 1NA

My Ref : ce/sm/ChapmanC Date: 8™ April, 2014.

Dear Ms Chapman,

INQUIRY INTO PUBLIC LIBRARIES IN WALES

You asked for clarification on 3 points in your letter dated 26" March 2014:-

Equality Impact Assessment

| can confirm that Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council has undertaken an Equality
Impact Assessment in respect of its plan to reconfigure library services across the county
borough.

In line with the General Equality Duty outlined in s149 of the Equality Act 2010, the Impact
Assessment:-

o Assessed specific differential impacts that have been identified for each of the protected
characteristics.

e |dentified where actions can be considered to minimise or remove any potential
negative impacts relating to the proposals.

e Provided opportunities, where appropriate, to advance equality and good relations
between different groups.

In addition, feedback received from the public consultation process that took place between
4™ November 2013 and 2" December 2013 was considered. Responses received from the
announcement of the proposed service changes on 14" October 2013, before the
consultation period officially started, were also included in the analysis of results.

Steve Merritt C.P.F.A.

Chief Executive | Prifweithredwr PaCk Page 34 o PBOg, ol
50 S efef s

Available in alternative formats and languages | Dewiswch iaith a diwyg eich dogfen Usaw® % po®



el STRONG HERITAGE | STRONG FUTLIRE
/4 RHONDDA CYNON TAF
/ TRETTADAETH CADARM | DYFOLMOL 510K

4 The Pavilions, Cambrian Park
Clydach Vale, Tonvpandy, CR40 2XX
¥ Pafilivnau, Parc v Cambrian

Cwern Clydach, Tonypandy, CR40 23X

cliFfén: 01443 424026, Fax/Flacs: 01443 424027

Consequently, the Council is confident that due regard has been paid to the council’s duty
as specified in the Equality Act 2010. The Equality Impact Assessment and Report on the
Consultation can be accessed through the following link:-

http://www.rctcbc.gov.uk/en/councildemocracy/democracy/democracyelections/councillor
scommittees/meetings/cabinet/2013/12/16/cabinet16-dec-2013.aspx

Consultation with Representatives of Vulnerable Users

The Council was committed to undertaking a transparent and comprehensive consultation
process. Accordingly, every effort was made to ensure that individuals and groups were
provided with ample opportunity to contribute to the consultation using their preferred
medium and form, of communication.

Consultation papers were distributed to the following centres and stakeholders:-

e Primary Schools and childcare providers — a number of copies were provided to each
primary school for reception areas. Head teachers were sent a letter requesting that
they place copies on their Moodle sites and use parent mail and text services to provide
parents with the information

e Secondary schools

e Day centres

e Libraries

e Leisure centres

e Communities First Offices

e Main receptions of Council buildings

e One4All Centres

e Councillors to deliver in the communities they serve

In addition letters were delivered to each housebound library service user.

The consultation was promoted to the press via press releases and the coverage included
the South Wales Echo, Western Mail, Rhondda Leader, Cynon Valley Leader and Pontypridd
Observer. There was also coverage on BBC Wales, TV and radio as well as ITV news and
GTFM.

Welsh copies were made available, as well as the option for other formats on request.
Requests were made for copies of the booklets in Polish and Lithuanian and these were
supplied.

Steve Merritt C.P.F.A.

Chief Executive | Prifweithredwr PaCk Page 35

o ¥

A8g,,
L5 > i
50 S efef s

Available in alternative formats and languages | Dewiswch iaith a diwyg eich dogfen Usaw® % po®

L5



STROMG HERITAGE | STRONG FUTLIRE

-
/A RHONDDA CYNON TAF

o TRETTADAFTH CADARM | DYFOLMOL S10CH

x The: Pavilions, Cambrian Park
Clydach Vale, Tonvpandy, CF40 2XX
¥ Pafilivnau, Parc v Cambrian

Cwern Clydach, Tonypandy, CR40 23X

An online webpage was created along with the option of an online survey. A web logo box
was placed on the front of the website for ease of access.

A link to the online page was placed on social media. Twitter was used to advertise it.
A dedicated telephone number was set up in the Council’s Contact Centre to deal with any
gueries and to distribute materials as necessary. A dedicated email address and free post

address were also provided.

Adults with literacy issues were directed to a library or a One4All Centre where support to
complete the form was available.

Consequently, we are confident that any groups or individuals who wished to contribute
their views on the proposals were given every opportunity to do so and provided with the

support they required to take part in the process.

Links Between Education Services and Public Libraries

In Rhondda Cynon Taf, Libraries are part of the Community Learning Service which also
includes Adult Education, Family Learning, Bridges into Work ESF programme and our Welsh
Language Unit. These services are managed by the Head of Community Learning who is
accountable to the Service Director for Schools and Community. Therefore, there is a strong
link between libraries and the Council’s directly delivered education services with classes
and educational activities being delivered at library venues that have suitable facilities for
learners. Our partners in the Adult Community Learning partnership also deliver some of
their programmes at libraries that have suitable facilities.

It should be noted however, that not all libraries have facilities that are suitable for delivery
of classes, especially if they are accredited courses. Of the 14 libraries that will close, 10 do
not have facilities that would support the delivery of effective adult education classes, for
example, a suitable room set apart from the main library or sufficient computers to meet
the requirements of a training provider. Indeed, only 6 classes will require relocation as a
result of the planned closures.

The link between the library service and schools remains unaffected by the closure of static
library points, as our Schools Library Service has Service Level Agreements with primary
schools across the county borough, supplying a comprehensive service in support of the
curriculum.

Steve Merritt C.P.F.A.

Chief Executive | Prifweithredwr PaCk Page 36

& Moy, oBlig

£ % -
E.M‘?f %ya £
o )

Available in alternative formats and languages | Dewiswch iaith a diwyg eich dogfen — %saa® . pc



el STRONG HERITAGE | STRONG FUTLIRE
/ RHONDDA CYNON TAF

/ TRETTADAFTH CADARM | DYFOLMOL S10CH

4 The Pavilions, Cambrian Park
Clydach Vale, Tonvpandy, CR40 2XX
¥ Pafilivnau, Parc v Cambrian

Cwm Clydach, Tonypandy, CR40 2XX

cliFfén: 01443 424026, Fax/Flacs: 01443 424027

It is important to realise that library services and facilities are much wider than library
buildings and we are currently reconfiguring our library service to ensure that even though
some of our static sites are closing, customers will still be able to access our services by
other means and at other venues across the county borough. Children’s ‘libraries’ and
associated activities will be transferred to our integrated children’s centres. Partnership
working between Family Learning, Language and Play and other children’s services will
ensure that children and families in most need will be able to access books and take part in
wider library initiatives, including story-telling sessions.

Similarly, relocation of computers to day centres will ensure that older and more vulnerable
adults will be able to take part in learning activities and order their books for pick-up and
drop-off at the day centre they attend.

An enhanced mobile service, including evening and weekend provision, will ensure that all
individuals that want to access books for leisure or personal development will be able to do
so.

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council has considered, in detail, the likely effects of
library closures on individuals and communities and has made every effort to mitigate any
adverse consequences on the most vulnerable residents. We believe that the current
changes being introduced, will ensure that the library service is more sustainable and
resilient and better able to meet the needs of customers in a rapidly changing environment.

Yours sincerely,
A A
R‘éfll f{blﬁl-ﬂi.ﬁ'!ri'k"—]
.

Steve Merritt
Chief Executive

Steve Merritt C.P.F.A,
Chief Executive | Prifweithredwr PaCk Page 37 & RBOy,

n o0 Bldsy

Available in alternative formats and languages | Dewiswch iaith a diwyg eich dogfen Usaw® % po®



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 9

Thank you for your letter dated 26 March 2014 in relation to the Inquiry into Public Libraries in
Wales.

In response the questions posed in this letter, please find our responses below:

1. Has your local authority undertaken equality impact assessments when considering the
potential closure of libraries in your area, and if so, please can you provide details;

The authority has undertaken two equality impact assessments for both the cessation of the mobile
library service as well as the reduction in opening hours for the branch libraries.

The equality impact assessment relating to the cessation of the mobile library service highlighted the
following:

e The changes would be relevant to the following groups: age, disability, poverty/social
exclusion, welsh language and carers

e Four of these groups (age, disability, Welsh Language and carers) could be negatively
affected by the proposed changes

e Two main age groups would be affected by the changes (over 50s and school age children)
as they formed the majority of the customer base

e Consultation was undertaken with the public, alongside other proposed changes to service
areas. 58% of the respondents agreed with the proposal.

The EIA further highlighted that work had already been undertaken to mitigate the effects on
protected groups. This work included the extension of the Homelinks service (for those who are
unable to access normal services points due to a physical or other impairment) to include carers.
Revision of the Homelinks timetable also allowed us to extend the number of calls we were able to
make and further improve the service to customers.

Where impact was considered on the following:

e Foster good relationships between different groups

e Elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation
e Advance equality of opportunity between different groups
e Reduction of social exclusion and poverty

The equality impact assessment highlighted the following:

e Service reduction will inevitably have negative impacts
e The wider service at the four static service points will remain at a level over and above the
stipulated level for library services contained within the Welsh Public Library Standards

e Opening hours would be protected at the busier static service points able to reach a wider
audience

Pack Page 38



The static service points were in a better position to be able to have a positive impact on the
points above

Welsh language provision would be maintained and extended where appropriate at
remaining static service points

There were no perceived impacts on community cohesion

It was also highlighted that monitoring arrangements would remain in place to monitor the effects
of the changes, these include:

Welsh Public Library Standards reports
Corporate and National Pls

Monitoring of Visitor Figures

Monitoring of Issue Figures

Completion of survey over scheduled timeframes
Customer comments/complaints

The Equality Impact Assessment for the Reduction in Opening Hours highlighted the following:

The changes would be relevant to the following groups: age, disability, poverty/social
exclusion, welsh language and carers

Four of these groups (age, disability, Welsh Language and carers) could be negatively
affected by the proposed changes

Consultation was undertaken with the public, alongside other proposed changes to service
areas. 58% of the respondents agreed with the proposal

No particular actions were highlighted that would mitigate the adverse impact.

Where impact was considered on the following:

Foster good relationships between different groups
Elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation
Advance equality of opportunity between different groups
Reduction of social exclusion and poverty

The equality impact assessment highlighted the following:

Service reduction will inevitably have negative impacts

The service at the four static service points will remain at a level over and above the
stipulated level for library services contained within the Welsh Public Library Standards
Opening hours would be protected at the busier static service points able to reach a wider
audience

The levels of card use were evaluated and the decisions on when and where to make changes based
on the levels of visitors and usage.

Pack Page 39



There were no perceived impacts on community cohesion and there were no perceived barriers
against the provision of Welsh Language materials and use thereof.

It was also highlighted that monitoring arrangements would remain in place to monitor the effects
of the changes, these include:

e Welsh Public Library Standards reports

e Corporate and National Pls

e Monitoring of Visitor Figures

e Monitoring of Issue Figures

e Completion of survey over scheduled timeframes
e Customer comments/complaints

The local authority undertook extensive consultation with the public via a corporate process which
was available on line and in hard copy and relevant officers also took part in events across the
borough open to the public to discuss the proposals and make their views known. No specific groups
were targeted during this consultation process.

Merthyr Tydfil Public Libraries work closely with the Education Department where we are able,
especially in relation to supporting reading schemes through available appropriate stock. We have
good working relationships with local schools and have been involved in a number of initiatives. Like
many areas however there is room for improvement and there are more links that could be made.
We are constantly working to promote the services we have that support education and to deliver
new and innovative ways of engaging with children through schools to encourage independent
reading for pleasure. We have a very good relationships with the local Basic Skills Co-ordinator who
is a very good advocate for libraries within our local schools.

We recognise that there is more work to do and with shrinking budgets and reduced staffing we are
aware that there are challenges ahead to both maintain our current position and to improve on
where we currently are. While having gone through a difficult time in relation to budgets and cuts
that have had to be made, as a service we are confident we can build on partnerships to maximise
the impact the service can and will have on the residents of and visitors to the county borough of
Merthyr Tydfil.

Pack Page 40



Pack Page 41



Education and Leisure Services Directorate / Cyfarwyddiaeth Gwasanaethau Addysg a Hamdden
Lynn Phillips, Assistant Director Leisure Services and School Transformation / Cyfarwyddwr Cynorthwyol Gwasanaethau Hamdden a Thrawsnewid Ysgolion

T: (01495) 355050 DX: 43956 Ebbw Vale

F: (01495) E:
LP/TJ/DM
Our Ref./Ein Cyf.
Your Ref./Eich Cyf. Mrs T. Jones Cyngor Bwrdeisdref Sirol
Head of Libraries
Contact:/Cysylltwch a: B I a e n a u GWe nt
th .
14" April 2014 County Borough Council

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 10

Christine Chapman AM
Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee

National Assembly for Wales
Cardiff Bay

Cardiff

CF99 1NA

Dear Chris

Re: Inquiry into Public Libraries in Wales

In response to your letter dated 26™ March 2014, | would like to confirm that Blaenau
Gwent is not currently considering the closure of any library within the borough.
Therefore, there have been no impact assessments undertaken or consultations

within the community.

There are strong links between the library service in Blaenau Gwent and the
Education Department. The Library Service currently operates under Learning
Services, within the Leisure and Education Department.

The service has a specialist post of Children’s Officer. This role is responsible for
delivering a programme of school visits to libraries, promotion of national reading
schemes for children, including BookStart and Summer Reading Challenge.
Blaenau Gwent Libraries also provides a Library Service for Schools through a
service level agreement with the Education Department.  The service targets
children, young people and their families through reading incentive programmes,
including BookCrawl for babies and the Six Book Reading Challenge for reluctant

adult readers.

We support informal and formal learning through a wide range of activities. We are
instrumental in helping people re-engage with learning at all stages of their life. We
improve access to books and engagement to learning through successful
partnership working within the borough, including Families First, Language and Play,
Blaenau Gwent Community Education, ‘Get Blaenau Gwent On-Line, LearnDirect
and Open University. Blaenau Gwent Libraries also contributes to the South East
Wales Reading Strategy, in which there is a strategic element linked to libraries and

learning.

B

)
— 4 Bl

UDDSODDWR MEWN POBL
INVESTOR IN PEOPLE

We welcome correspondence in the medium of Welsh or English. / Croesawn ohebiaith trwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg neu'r Saesneg.

Leis Servi Division, Adran Gwa thain Hamdden, A
eisure Services Division wasanaetha e ﬂ ﬁéﬁer P(ﬂée fa (¢V€ ﬂnd Work

Anvil Court, Llys yr Eingion,
Church Street, Stryd yr Eglwys,

Abertillery, Abertyleri, (e dm/e(( ¢ fyv\/ a dlﬂ/ei‘t/'io

NP13 1DB NP13 1DB



Blaenau Gwent recently hosted the national launch of ‘Every Child a Member’. This
project is led by CyMAL (Museums, Archives and Libraries Wales) and the Welsh
Libraries Audience Development team. The initiative has strengthened the links
between all primary schools and libraries within the borough. Blaenau Gwent
libraries and primary schools are joining forces to provide every primary school child
with a free library and the offer of promotional visits to the local library. This project
is an excellent example demonstrating the beneficial advantages to strong links

between local libraries and Education Departments.

Esomntiee Ebtladyime 2@ Blaengen@went Libraries will be incorporated into the new
e DekIt@rTilst. The strong links with education will continue under trust status.
The vision and outcomes of the trust will be aligned to the vision and outcomes of
the local authority, so that both organisations are working in partnership to deliver

improvements for Blaenau Gwent.

If you require any further information, please contact;
Tracy.jones1@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk

Yours sincerely -

e
Tracy Jones =

Head of Libraries

& Phone/ Ffon (01495) 355950
Mobile Blackberry 07772379791
YA Email tracy.jones1@blaenau-gwent.gov.uk
iy Education and Leisure Department, Leisure Services, Anvil Court, Abertillery, NP13 1DB

Pack Page 43



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee

CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 11

Gwasanaeth Datblygiad Cymunedol / Community Development Service

| ~7
CoNnwy

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Communities, Equality & Local Government

Pennaeth Gwasanaeth / Head Of Service - Marianne Jackson

Adeilad y Llyfrgell, Stryd Mostyn, LLANDUDNO, LL30 2RP
Library Buildings, Mostyn Street, LLANDUDNO, LL30 2RP

Gofynnwch am / Please ask for: Marianne Jackson
& 01492576314

Committee 01492 575552
National Assembly for Wales E marianne jackson@conwy.gov.uk
Cardiff Bay 2 y-gov.
CF99 1NA Ein Cyf / Our Ref: MJ/ALW/kg
Eich Cyf/ Your Ref:
Dyddiad / Date: 15™ April 2014
Dear Sirs

RE: Inquiry into Public Libraries in Wales

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to the Communities, Equality and Local Government
Committee’s enquiry into Public Libraries in Wales.

Conwy'’s response is as follows:

- has your local authority
undertaken equality impact
assessments when
considering the potential
closure of libraries in your
area, and if so, please can
you provide details;

Conwy County Borough Council has undertaken Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) as
part of a rigorous process undertaken to develop a Strategy to Modernise the Library
Service. The Strategy was agreed in Cabinet 13-12-2011 Item 637
(http://modgoveng.conwy.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=171&MId=2713&Ver=4)
The document library for these assessments is available at
(http://modgoveng.conwy.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13417&path=13416

Work is currently ongoing to implement the Strategy. One of the proposals in the Strategy
is to establish an area library for Conwy / Llandudno Junction / Deganwy. EIAs are being
undertaken as part of a detailed options appraisal. Once proposals for the area library
have been finalised, the existing libraries at Conwy, Llandudno Junction and Deganwy will
be closed.

- has your local authority
consulted with local
representatives of vulnerable
users when considering the
potential closure of libraries in
your area, and if so, please
can you provide details; and

As part of the process to develop a Strategy to Modernise the Library Service (agreed in
Cabinet 13-12-2011 Item 637) as above, extensive public consultation via questionnaires
and Stakeholder workshops was undertaken. The Service actively engaged with
representatives of vulnerable groups and some attended the workshops, as well as
responded individually to the questionnaires. The feedback was integrated into the
development of the agreed Strategy. The responses received to these public
consultations and feedback is available at

(' http://www.conwy.gov.uk/doc.asp?cat=8955&doc=28826&Language=1 )

Further consultation has been undertaken during the implementation of the Strategy, in
particular regarding opening hours of libraries and reviews of the Mobile and Home
Library service. This has included engagement with vulnerable groups to determine their
views and to ensure the services are targeted to customer demand.

As part of the outreach programme for the service, staff have regular opportunities to
discuss the needs of specific user groups and integrate these to service delivery to protect
services

€ AB
Prif Switsfwrdd / Main Switchboard: 01492 574000 g:f;"b.ggzw\i
WWW.CONWY.gov.uk &3
WWW.CONWY.qoVv.uk a%f
. 9
D\°

Pack Page 44



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 11

what links are there between education services and There are no formal links between the education services
public libraries in your local authority. and the public libraries in Conwy. However, the service
regularly works with schools on partnership projects. For
example, in 2014 Conwy is hosting the North East Wales
Books Quiz, a partnership between the North East Wales
Schools Library Service, the public library services of
Conwy, Denbighshire, Flintshire and Wrexham and
schools in the 4 counties. The Quiz aims to raise the
profile of books and reading in schools

Please do not hesitate to contact us should you require any further information.

Yours sincerely

\V/LQ&LQ\,\N\ZQ Q;SC_’)\C‘ WP

Marianne Jackson
Head of Community Development Service

Pack Page 45




Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 12

Dear Ms Chapman AM

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION REQUEST X01- 2744

We refer to your email dated 26 March 2014 which contained a request for information as
set out in italics below. Following consideration of your request, in accordance with the
Freedom of Information Act 2000, | respond to each point as follows:

-Has your local authority undertaken equality impact assessments when considering the
potential closure of libraries in your area, and if so, please can you provide details;

The Authority has not closed any libraries over the past two years.

However; the Authority recently responded to CyMAL as part of the Ministerial review into
libraries and issued the following on consultation and EIA:

Please find below a link to the consultation on the relocation of Bridgend Library. It was not
associated with a savings plan but may give a feel for the issues, concerns and opportunities
expressed by users and non-users.

The consultation allowed the Authority to develop a full Equality Impact Assessment as well
as influence the physical and service design of the new library. As significant as what people
did say, was the real lack of response on the subject matter when considering the library
would serve a population of c. 40, 000. This highlighted the need to make the library service
more visible and encourage younger generations and families to start a relationship with
their library.

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/web/groups/public/documents/report/104357.doc
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/web/groups/public/documents/report/104359.pdf

The Scrutiny report highlighted below has, as an Appendix, the Equalities Impact
Assessment on the re-location of Bridgend Library along with an update on the mitigating
actions carried out.

http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/web/groups/public/documents/report/111045.doc

- Has your local authority consulted with local representatives of vulnerable users when
considering the potential closure of libraries in your area, and if so, please can you
provide details; and

The Authority has not closed any libraries over the past two years; however please see
response to question 1 in respect of the re-location of Bridgend Library.

- What links are there between education services and public libraries in your local
authority.

The library service in Bridgend fully recognises its role against the need to improve literacy
levels amongst young people and is diverting its development resources into this. It is clearly
set out against the Corporate Plan 2013-17 and within the Directorate Business Plan for
2014-15. The Authority has developed specific Pls to monitor the library service’s
performance in this area of work e.g. the % population of under-5s that are library members.

Pack Page 46


http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/web/groups/public/documents/report/104357.doc
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/web/groups/public/documents/report/104359.pdf
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/web/groups/public/documents/report/111045.doc

Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 12

The library service’s links with education are mainly directly co-ordinated through individual
schools. Individual branch managers and/or the Children’s Development Librarian are pro-
active and will work with schools on projects and events such as the Summer Reading
Challenge, story times, story cafes in schools, using e-magazines, the ‘Reading for Fun’
programme and other similar activities.

Colleagues across leisure services are currently working on a joint offer that can be
presented to all schools, primary and secondary, which will set out our services, their
benefits and how schools can get involved. The recent launch of the pilot of the ‘Every Child
a Library Member’ scheme — assuming it is subsequently rolled out to all Welsh authorities -
will involve working more closely with education departments.

I hope this response satisfies your request. If you are dissatisfied with the handling of the
request, under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 you have the right to request a review
of the Council’s response to your request for information.

Yours sincerely

Freedom of Information Office
Bridgend County Borough Council

Pack Page 47



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 13

HOLIDAY CARAVAN SITES (WALES) BILL

TABLE OF DERIVATIONS

Introduction

1.

2.

3.

This document is intended as an informal aid to consideration of
the Holiday Caravan Sites (Wales) Bill in the National Assembly for
Wales. While care has been taken to ensure that the document is
accurate, it does not purport to be, and should not be relied on as,
authoritative.

For a complete understanding of the derivations, readers are
referred to the 1960 and 2013 Acts. Also, pages 43 - 49 of the
Explanatory Memorandum set out a summary of the main
differences between the Bill and the 2013 Act, which may be
useful.

The table uses a combination of phrases to indicate from where a
provision of the Bill has derived. As a general rule:

‘based on’ means that the wording has largely been copied word
for word (but with some exceptions to remove extraneous and
old-fashioned wording). However, there may still be additional
wording included in the Bill, indicated by a comment in the
‘substantive change’ column.

‘based partly on’ means that only some of the wording has been
copied word for word, but some wording has been omitted as it
is unsuitable to be included in the Bill. Again, there may still be
additional wording included in the Bill, indicated by a comment
in the ‘substantive change’ column.

‘based partly on the 1960 Act, but modified to reflect the 2013
Act’ means that whilst the origin of the law is in the 1960 Act,
the Bill uses the wording of the 2013 Act (because the 2013 Act
modified the wording used in the 1960 Act). A comment in the
‘substantive change’ column indicates any additional wording
included in the Bill.

Pack Page 48



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 13

4. One substantive change not specifically referred to in the table
relates to the appeals process under the Bill. The 1960 Act
provides for certain appeals to be made to the magistrates’ court
and for other appeals (relating to residential sites only) to be made
to the residential property tribunal. The 2013 Act provides that
such appeals are made to the residential property tribunal only.
The Bill provides that all such appeals are made to the magistrates’
court only. Given the intricate nature of these substantive changes,
they are not specifically referred to in the table in order to aid
clarity.

Definitions used in the table

1960 Act Caravan Sites and Control of Development Act 1960
1968 Act Caravan Sites Act 1968

2011 Act Caravans Act (Northern Ireland) 2011

2013 Act Mobile Homes (Wales) Act 2013

Pack Page 49



Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee

CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 13

TABLE OF DERIVATIONS

SECTION / CORRESPONDING REFERENCE IN EXISTING SUBSTANTIVE
SCHEDULE LEGISLATION CHANGE?
PART 1: INTRODUCTION

1 New.

2 Meaning of “holiday caravan” is the same No.

as the meaning of “caravan” in section 29
of the 1960 Act and section 13 of the
1968 Act. Same meaning also used for
“mobile home” in section 60 of the 2013
Act.

3 New, but based partly on section 1(4) of
the 1960 Act. Similar wording also used in
the definition of “regulated site” in section
2 of the 2013 Act.

Yes (narrows the
definition to sites
used for holiday
purposes only).

4 New.

5 Meaning of “owner” based on section 1(3) No.
of the 1960 Act, and section 3 of the 2013
Act.

Meaning of “occupier” is new.

PART 2: LICENSING

6 New.

7 Based on sections 1(1) and 1(2) of the
1960 Act, and section 5 of the 2013 Act.

Yes (increased fine
level, reflecting the
2013 Act).

8 Based partly on section 3 (1) and (2) of the
1960 Act, but modified to reflect section 6
of the 2013 Act.

Yes, regarding the
1960 Act. No,
regarding the 2013
Act.

9 New.

10 Based partly on sections 3 (4), (5) and (6)
of the 1960 Act, but modified to reflect
section 7 of the 2013 Act.

Yes, regarding the
1960 Act. No,
regarding the 2013
Act.

11 Based on section 4 of the 1960 Act.

No.

Pack Page 50




Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 13

12 Based on section 5 of the 1960 Act, but Yes, regarding the
modified to reflect section 9 of the 2013 1960 Act. No,
Act. regarding the 2013

Act.

13 Based on sections 5(6), (6A), (7) and (8) of | No.
the 1960 Act, and section 13 of the 2013
Act.

14 Based on sections 5(3A), (3B) and (3C) of No.
the 1960 Act, and section 14 of the 2013
Act.

15 New.

16 New.

17 Based partly on section 7 of the 1960 Act, | Yes, regarding the
but modified to reflect section 12 of the 1960 Act. No,
2013 Act. regarding the 2013

Act.

18 Based on section 8(1), (1A), (4), (5) and Yes (regarding the
(5A) of the 1960 Act, but modified to duty to consult on
reflect section 13 of the 2013 Act. flood risk

management).

19 Based on sections 8(2), (3) and (4) of the No.

1960 Act, but modified to reflect section
14 of the 2013 Act.

20 Based on section 15 of the 2013 Act (since | Yes, regarding the
replicated to a great extent in section 9A 1960 Act. No,
of the 1960 Act for residential sites). regarding the 2013

Act.

21 Based on section 16 of the 2013 Act. Yes (regarding the
maximum level of
fine and the Welsh
Ministers’ duty to
issue guidance).
There is no
equivalent
provision in the
1960 Act.

22 Based on section 17 of the 2013 Act (since | No.

replicated in section 9A of the 1960 Act
for residential sites).
23 Based on section 18 of the 2013 Act (since | No.

replicated in section 9B of the 1960 Act for
residential sites).

Pack Page 51




Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 13

24 Based on section 19 of the 2013 Act (since | No.
replicated in section 9C of the 1960 Act
for residential sites).

25 Based on section 20 of the 2013 Act (since | No.
replicated in section 9D of the 1960 Act
for residential sites).

26 Based on section 21 of the 2013 Act (since | No.
replicated in section 9E of the 1960 Act for
residential sites).

27 Based on section 22 of the 2013 Act (since | No.
replicated in section 9F of the 1960 Act for
residential sites).

28 Based on section 23 of the 2013 Act (since | No.
replicated in section 9G of the 1960 Act
for residential sites).

29 Based on section 24 of the 2013 Act (since | No.
replicated in section 9H of the 1960 Act
for residential sites).

30 Based on section 25 of the 2013 Act (since | No.
replicated in section 9l of the 1960 Act for
residential sites).

31 Based partly on section 10 of the 1960 No.
Act.
32 Based on section 11 of the 1960 Act, but No.
modified to reflect section 27 of the 2013
Act.
33 Based on section 28 of the 2013 Act. Yes (regarding

application of the
test to the most
senior persons
responsible for
managing the site).

There is no
equivalent
provision in the
1960 Act, though
the 1960 Act
provides for a ‘fit
and proper person’
regime to be
introduced by
regulations.

34 Based on section 29 of the 2013 Act. Yes (regarding
additional evidence

5
Pack Page 52




Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 13

to be considered by
local authority
relating to breach

of trading
standards law).
35 Based on section 30 of the 2013 Act. No.
There is no
equivalent
provision in the
1960 Act.
36 Based on section 31 of the 2013 Act. No.
There is no
equivalent
provision in the
1960 Act.
37 Based on section 26 of the 1960 Act, but No.
modified to reflect section 32 of the 2013
Act.
38 Based on section 33 of the 2013 Act. No.
There is no
equivalent
provision in the
1960 Act.
39 Based on sections 5A(1), (2), (3) and (4) of | No.
the 1960 Act.
40 Based on section 10A of the 1960 Act, but | No.
modified to reflect section 36 of the 2013
Act.
41 Based on section 25 of the 1960 Act, but No.
modified to reflect section 37 of the 2013
Act.
42 Based on section 28 of the 1960 Act, but No.
modified to reflect section 38 of the 2013
Act.
43 Based on sections 1(3) and 29 of the 1960 | No.

Act, but modified to reflect section 39 of
the 2013 Act.

PART 3: RESIDENCE TEST

44

New.

Pack Page 53




Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 13

45 New.
46 New.
47 New.
48 New.
49 New.
50 New.
51 New.
52 New.
53 New.
PART 4: HOLIDAY CARAVAN AGREEMENTS
54 New.
55 Based partly on section 49 of the 2013 Yes (relating to
Act, and section 8 of the 2011 Act. specifying the
details to be
provided in a
written statement
and the timing of
giving written
statements).
56 New (but sections 56(3)(d) and (e) based No.
on paragraph 22 of Schedule 2 to the 2013
Act, and section 9 of the 2011 Act).
57 Based on section 53(1) of the 2013 Act. No.
There is no
equivalent
provision in the
1960 Act.
58 Based on section 54(3) of the 2013 Act, No.
and section 10 of the 2011 Act.
There is no
equivalent
provision in the
1960 Act.
PART 5: PROTECTION FROM HARASSMENT
59 New.
60 Based partly on section 42 of the 2013 Yes (provisions
Act, and section 12 of the 2011 Act. relating to

Pack Page 54




Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee
CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 13

protection from
eviction have been
limited in the
holiday context).

61 Based partly on section 43 of the 2013 No.
Act, and section 12 of the 2011 Act.

62 Based on sections 45(2) and (3) of the No.
2013 Act.

63 Based on section 46 of the 2013 Act. No.

PART 6: SUPPLEMENTAL AND GENERAL

64 Based on section 34 of the 2013 Act. Yes (by clarifying
that it is an offence
to fail to provide
information or
notifications
required under the
Bill).

65 Based on section 35 of the 2013 Act. No.

66 Based on section 58 of, and Schedule 4 to, | Yes (all

the 2013 Act. consequential
amendments to be
made by order).

67 Based on section 59 of the 2013 Act. No.

68 Based on section 62 of the 2013 Act. No.

69 Based on section 63 of the 2013 Act. No.

70 Based on section 64 of the 2013 Act. No.

71 New.

SCHEDULES

Schedule 1 Based on Schedule 1 to the 1960 Act, and | Yes (relating to the

Schedule 1 to the 2013 Act. continuation of
certificates of
exemption already
granted when the
Bill comes into
force).

Schedule 2 New.

Schedule 3 Based on Schedule 5 to the 2013 Act. No (but the main

transitional
arrangement has
been put in the

Pack Page 55




Communities, Equality and Local Government Committee

CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 13

main body of the
Bill, see section 9).

Pack Page 56




	Agenda
	2 Housing (Wales) Bill: Paper for consideration on Stage 2
	3 Consideration of the letter from the Chair of the Public Accounts Committee: Meeting the financial challenges facing Local Government in Wales
	4 Professional Development Programme - Financial Scrutiny
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 4.1
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 4.2
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 4.3
	CLEG(4)-13-14 Paper 4.4

	5 Papers to note
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 5
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 6
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 6a
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 7
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 8
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 9
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 10
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 11
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 12
	CELG(4)-13-14 Paper 13




